
 

Meeting Notice 

 

 

Paratransit Advisory and 

Planning Committee  
Monday, April 27, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, CA 94607 

 

Please note that the Monday, April 27, 2015 PAPCO 

meeting will be from 1:00 to 3:00 p.m. and the Joint 

PAPCO and ParaTAC meeting will be from 3:00 to 4:00 

p.m. Please plan your transportation accordingly. 

 
Mission Statement 

The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission 

(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund and deliver transportation programs and 

projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant 

and livable Alameda County. 

 

Public Comments 

Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 

covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 

specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item 

discussion. If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand 

it to the clerk of the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your 

name. When you are summoned, come to the microphone and give 

your name and comment. 

 

Reminder 

Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 

scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend 

the meeting. 

Commission Chair 

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 

 

Commission Vice Chair 

Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 

City of Oakland 

 

AC Transit 

Director Elsa Ortiz 

 

Alameda County 

Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 

Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 

Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 

 

BART 

Director Thomas Blalock 

 

City of Alameda 

Mayor Trish Herrera Spencer 

 

City of Albany 

Vice Mayor Peter Maass 

 

City of Berkeley 

Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 

 

City of Dublin 

Mayor David Haubert 

 

City of Emeryville 

Mayor Ruth Atkin 

 

City of Fremont 

Mayor Bill Harrison 

 

City of Hayward 

Mayor Barbara Halliday 

 

City of Livermore 

Mayor John Marchand 

 

City of Newark 

Councilmember Luis Freitas 

 

City of Oakland 

Vice Mayor Larry Reid 

 

City of Piedmont 

Mayor Margaret Fujioka 

 

City of Pleasanton 

Mayor Jerry Thorne  

 

City of San Leandro 

Mayor Pauline Russo Cutter 

 

City of Union City 

Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 

 

 

Executive Director 

Arthur L. Dao 
 



 

Recording of Public Meetings 

The executive director or designee may designate one or more locations from which members of the 

public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or tape record open and public meetings without 

causing a distraction. If the Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or 

obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the proceedings, these 

activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined by the Commission or such committee (CA 

Government Code Sections 54953.5-54953.6). 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 

transportation modes. The office is 

conveniently located near the  

12th Street/City Center BART station 

and many AC Transit bus lines. Bicycle 

parking is available on the street and in 

the BART station as well as in electronic 

lockers at 14th Street and Broadway 

near Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires 

purchase of key card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between 1300 

Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street. To plan your trip to 

Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 

Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 

Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome.  

Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD) five days in advance to request a sign-language 

interpreter. 

 

     

 

Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 

 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now


 

Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 

meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 

accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. Any other notice required or permitted to be given 

under these bylaws will follow the same policy. PAPCO members receive an exception to the 

paperless policy and will continue to receive notices via U.S. Postal Service in addition to electronic 

versions. Members can request to opt-out of paper notices. 

 

Glossary of Terms 

A glossary of terms that includes frequently used industry terms and 

acronyms is available on the Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

 

Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 

 @AlamedaCTC 

 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

 

file://ACTCFS01/SHARED/AlaCTC_Meetings/Community_TACs/PAPCO/Templates/Meeting_Notice/www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150427.docx (A = Action Item; I = 

Information Item) 

 

Paratransit Advisory Planning Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

Monday, April 27, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 

  Chair: Sylvia Stadmire 

Vice Chair: Will Scott 

Staff Liaisons: Naomi Armenta, 

Jacki Taylor 

Public Meeting Coordinator: 

Krystle Pasco 

  

1:00 – 1:12 p.m. 

Chair 
1. Welcome and 

Introductions 

1:12 – 1:15 p.m. 

Public 
2. Public Comment Page A/I 

1:15 – 1:20 p.m. 

Chair 
3. Administration 

  

 3.1. March 23, 2015 PAPCO Meeting 

Minutes  

1 A 

 Recommendation: Approve the  

March 23, 2015 PAPCO meeting 

minutes. 

  

1:20 – 1:45 p.m. 

Staff 

4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Extension 

Recommendation 

9 A 

 The Committee will review the FY 2015-

16 funding recommendation for the 

Gap Grant Cycle 5 extension. 

  

 Recommendation: Approve Gap Grant 

Cycle 5 extension funding for FY 2015-16. 

  

1:45 – 1:55 p.m. 

PAPCO 
5. Fiduciary and Finance Subcommittee 

Meeting Report (Verbal) 

 I 

 The Fiduciary and Finance 

Subcommittee met on April 16, 2015. The 

  



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150427.docx (A = Action Item; I = 

Information Item) 

 

Committee will receive a report from the 

Subcommittee. 

1:55 – 2:15 p.m. 

Guest Speakers 
6. Livermore Amador Valley Transit 

Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly Report 

(Verbal) 

 I 

 The Committee will receive a quarterly 

report from Livermore Amador Valley 

Transit Authority (LAVTA). 

  

2:15 – 2:35 p.m. 

Staff 
7. Hospital Discharge Transportation 

Service and Wheelchair Scooter 

Breakdown Transportation Service 

Program Update (Handout) 

 I 

 The Committee will receive an update 

on the Hospital Discharge Transportation 

Service and Wheelchair Scooter 

Breakdown Transportation Service 

programs. 

  

2:35 – 2:40 p.m. 

PAPCO 
8. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, 

Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

  

 8.1. PAPCO Calendar of Events 17 I 

 8.2. PAPCO Work Plan 19 I 

 8.3. PAPCO Appointments 23 I 

2:40 – 2:45 p.m. 

 
9. Committee Reports (Verbal)   

Sharon Powers 9.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review 

Advisory Committee (SRAC) 
 I 

Herb Hastings 9.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee 

(CWC) 
 I 

 10. ADA Mandated Program and Policy   



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150427.docx (A = Action Item; I = 

Information Item) 

 

Reports 

 10.1. January 6, 2015 East Bay 

Paratransit Service Review 

Advisory Committee Meeting 

Minutes 

25 I 

2:45 – 3:00 p.m. 11. Information Items   

Staff 11.1. Mobility Management – SFist 

News Article 

31 I 

Krystle Pasco 11.2. Outreach Update  I 

Staff 11.3. Other Staff Updates  I 

 12. Draft Agenda Items for May 18, 2015 

PAPCO Meeting 

 I 

 12.1. Base Program Recommendation   

 12.2. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program 

Report: AlaCosta and Bay Area 

Outreach and Recreation 

Program (BORP) Capital Projects 

  

3:00 p.m. 13. Adjournment   

 

Next PAPCO Meeting: May 18, 2015 (3rd Monday due to Memorial Day) 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the 

Committee. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, March 23, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 3.1 

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_A_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_P_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_A Suzanne Ortt 

_A Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_P Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Terra Curtis, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Project Controls Team 

 

Guests:  

Ken Bukowski, Public Member; Alison Dejung, Eden I&R; Rashida Kamara, 

Transdev; Rick Otto, Eden I&R; Kim Ridgeway, AC Transit; Laura Timothy, 

BART 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Herb Hastings, PAPCO member, called the meeting to order in the 

temporary absence of the Chair and Vice Chair at 1:10 p.m. and 

confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with introductions and a 

review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

Page 1



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Administration 

 

3.1. February 23, 2015 PAPCO Meeting Minutes 

Jonah Markowitz moved to approve the February 23, 2015 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Esther Waltz seconded the motion. The 

motion passed (10-0-1; Member Harriette Saunders abstained). 

Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra 

Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Sharon Powers, 

Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas 

were present. 

 

3.2. February 23, 2015 Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Meeting Minutes 

Jonah Markowitz moved to approve the February 23, 2015 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Esther Waltz seconded the motion. The 

motion passed (10-0-1; Member Harriette Saunders abstained). 

Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra 

Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Sharon Powers, 

Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas 

were present. 

 

At this point, PAPCO Vice Chair Will Scott arrived and chaired the 

meeting moving forward. 

 

3.3. Convene Finance, Program Plan Review and Gap Subcommittees 

Naomi Armenta gave an overview of the Fiduciary and Finance 

Subcommittee as well as the Program Plan Review Subcommittee. 

She also noted that staff is recommending that a potential Gap 

Grant Cycle 5 Subcommittee be convened in May if necessary. 

 

Naomi noted the subcommittees’ background and purpose as 

well as the selection, process and the overall responsibilities of the 

subcommittee members. The PAPCO members that participate in 

these committees will receive a per diem as stated in the Bylaws. 

The Fiduciary and Finance Subcommittee will take place on 

Thursday, April 16th at 10:00 a.m. The Program Plan Review 

Page 2



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

Subcommittees will take place on Wednesday, April 29th and 

Thursday, April 40th at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Staff will review the Finance and Program Plan Review 

Subcommittee appointment applications that were submitted 

and notify Committee members who will be appointed to both 

subcommittees. 

 

4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports (Verbal) 

Naomi Armenta gave an update on the Gap Grant Cycle 5 progress 

reports. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Can we receive cost per trip information in the next progress 

report update? Yes, staff will provide that information from actual 

costs from the previous year and projections for the following 

year. Staff also noted that these figures will be staff estimates as 

this information is difficult to capture accurately. 

 Does staff anticipate a date when they will receive the City of 

Emeryville’s progress report? Alameda CTC staff is following up 

with the City of Emeryville’s staff on submitting their progress 

report and will forward PAPCO’s request that it be submitted by 

by Monday, March 30th. 

 

5. East Bay Paratransit Report (Verbal) 

Rashida Kamara and Laura Timothy gave a status report on East Bay 

Paratransit’s ridership, customer service and recent broker office 

activities. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 A member complimented Rashida Kamara on her thorough 

report. 

 A member noted that hospital staff sometimes needs extra time 

to get a patient ready for their EBP pick up time. They often feel 

rushed. EBP staff noted that some situations are just unavoidable 

and that is okay but it would be preferable if the hospital staff 

can help move the process along in any way. 

Page 3



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

 Some riders really rely on the courtesy call to let them know that 

the driver is on their way. Somehow I am no longer receiving 

those calls, why is that? There are only so many call center 

dispatchers that can give out courtesy calls. We have several 

hundred rides each day so not everyone is able to receive a call. 

If you really need the courtesy call, please let us know so that we 

can make a note of it on your client profile. 

 A member noted that as riders we have to take some initiative 

ourselves to be ready for our drivers to pick us up. That may 

mean being outside, waiting for the driver to pull up. Staff noted 

that until the Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system is fully rolled 

out, staff is not able to make all courtesy calls as needed. 

 A member noted that sometimes he is strapped in too tight 

across the chest and shoulders and as the driver makes 

repeated stops and/or has to stop immediately, the shoulder 

strap ends up hurting his chest. He noted that First Transit drivers 

are mainly the drivers that strap him in too tight. He suggested 

that maybe there be additional driver training on passenger 

safety and comfort. Staff will follow up on how they can improve 

the riders’ experience with regards to the shoulder strap. 

 

6. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: AC Transit New Freedom Match 

for Marketing Mobility Management Through 2-1-1 (Verbal) 

Rick Otto and Kim Ridgeway gave a Gap Grant Cycle 5 program 

report on the AC Transit New Freedom Match for Marketing Mobility 

Management Through 2-1-1 project. Kim gave an overview of the 

project’s parameters, goals, and various tasks. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Will you be buying the equipment before you hire new 

employees? Yes, staff is planning on buying the equipment by 

June 1st and the new hires will come on by June 15th and training 

will happen soon thereafter. 

 A member suggested that the computer systems that are 

purchased be compatible with assistive technology just in case 

any of the new hires have limited vision and/or hearing 

capabilities. 

Page 4



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

 How long will it take to train the new hires and the current staff 

members that will be working with this project? Eden I&R staff will 

be training all staff members working on this project on Eden I&R 

processes and it will take about a week to complete the training. 

 

7. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

Esther Waltz attended the USOAC Convention and she had a great 

time learning new information and meeting new people. 

 

Harriette Saunders attended the Alameda CTC Public Workshop for 

the Modal Plans at the Fruitvale-San Antonio Senior Center on 

Tuesday, February 24th. She also attended the Developmental 

Disabilities Council’s Transition Information Faire at the College of 

Alameda on Saturday, March 14th. 

 

Sandra Johnson-Simon also attended the USOAC Convention and it 

was well attended. She also announced that the Healthy Living 

Festival this year will be on Thursday, September 17th from 8:00 to 2:00 

p.m. at the Oakland Zoo. 

 

Joyce Jacobson noted that the funding for the Emery-Go-Round will 

be voted on again really soon. She also noted that she saw Matt 

Todd, former Programs Manager for the Alameda CTC, and shared 

that the meetings about the Emery-Go-Round have become more 

pleasant and cooperative since he has been involved. A new bus 

stop was even added without asking. She really appreciates Matt 

Todd’s presence at those meetings. 

 

Michelle Rousey attended the Developmental Disabilities Council’s 

Transition Information Faire at the College of Alameda on Saturday, 

March 14th. 

 

8. Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 

8.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

The next SRAC meeting is on Thursday, March 26th at 11:30 a.m. 

 

Page 5



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

8.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

The last CWC meeting took place on Monday, March 9th. Due to 

the passage of the TEP, the Committee will now be called the 

Independent Watchdog Committee moving forward. Members 

also discussed the Committee’s mission and responsibilities and 

members had the opportunity to sign up for various project 

subcommittees. 

 

9. ADA Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review the information provided in 

their packets.  

 

10. Information Items 

 

10.1. Mobility Management – Taxi, Limousine, and Paratransit 

Association Information 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the mobility management 

attachment in the meeting agenda packet. She noted that this 

attachment is relevant to the conversation regarding private 

operators like the Transportation Network Companies (TNCs) i.e. 

Uber, Lyft and Sidecar. 

 

10.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach 

events: 

 3/14/15 – Transition Information Faire, College of Alameda 

from 9:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

 3/17/15 – Transit Fair, Pleasanton Senior Center from 10:00 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 3/20/15 – USOAC Annual Convention, Ashland Community 

Center from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 4/1/15 – BART Train and Track Tour, 19th Street BART Station, 

Upper Platform from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 4/23/15 – Senior Health Fair, North Berkeley Senior Center 

from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 

10.3. Other Staff Updates 

Page 6



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

Naomi Armenta noted that the meeting’s handouts include 

information on the BART and CIL Train and Track Tour for seniors 

and people with disabilities, information on an assistive device 

presentation, and the DIS/PLAY Exhibition at the SOMArts 

Cultural Center. 

 

11. Draft Agenda Items for April 27, 2015 PAPCO and Joint PAPCO and 

ParaTAC Meeting 

11.1. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Extension Recommendation 

11.2. Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly 

Report 

11.3. Finance Subcommittee Status Report 

11.4. Hospital Discharge Transportation Service and Wheelchair 

Scooter Breakdown Transportation Service Programs Update 

11.5. BART Fleet of the Future Presentation 

11.6. Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Discussion 

 

12. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. The next PAPCO and Joint 

PAPCO and ParaTAC meetings are scheduled for April 27, 2015 at 

Alameda CTC’s offices located at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in 

Oakland. 

 

Page 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 8



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\4_Gap_Grant_Extension_Memo_20150427.docx 

 

Memorandum 4 

 

DATE: April 20, 2015 

SUBJECT: Gap Grant Cycle 5 Extension Recommendation 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a recommendation on the Gap Grant  

Cycle 5 Extension Requests for FY 2015-16 

 

Summary 

In February 2015, the Commission approved a 1-year extension to the 

Measure B Cycle 5 Gap Grant program. Through this extension, Cycle 5 

Gap Grant recipients were allowed to request one additional year of 

funding for FY 2015-16. The proposed funding recommendation based 

on the requests is summarized in Attachment A and performance 

measures are summarized in Attachment B. The Paratransit Advisory 

and Planning Committee (PAPCO) is requested to review and provide 

a recommendation to the Commission on the proposed extensions for 

FY 2015-16. The Commission is scheduled to receive the 

recommendation in May 2015. 

Background 

The 2000 Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) allocates 10.45 percent of 

net Measure B revenues to the Paratransit program. These revenues fund 

operations for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)-mandated services 

and city-based paratransit programs. The revenues also fund the 

discretionary Gap Grant program which funds projects intended to 

reduce the difference in special transportation services available to 

individuals in different geographic areas of Alameda County. PAPCO, 

an all-consumer community advisory committee, provides 

Page 9



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\4_Gap_Grant_Extension_Memo_20150427.docx 

 

recommendations to the Commission for items related to Paratransit 

funding, including the Gap Grant program.  

The Cycle 5 Gap Program was approved by the Commission in May 

2013. It included a total of $2.1 million of Measure B Gap funds for 12 

projects for a two-year funding period, July 1 2013 – June 30, 2015.  

Gap Grant Cycle 5 FY 2015-16 Extensions 

Due to the recent passage of Measure BB and the development of the 

Alameda CTC’s Comprehensive Investment Plan, staff recommended 

and the Commission approved extending the Measure B Cycle 5 Gap 

program for one year, through June 30, 2016. In March 2015, Cycle 5 

project sponsors were given an opportunity to apply for one-year 

extensions. Requests were due April 3, 2015 and 11 recipients applied, 

requesting a total of $1,225,139.  The requests and funding 

recommendations are summarized in Attachment A. Performance 

measures are summarized in Attachment B.  

Staff has developed a recommendation based on demonstrated 

funding need, past performance, projected growth and prior PAPCO 

input. The recommendation totals $1,131,394 and is summarized in 

Attachment A. Staff recommends fully funding eight projects and 

partially funding the following three projects - at 80% of the amount 

requested: 

 Center for Independent Living (CIL) – Mobility Matters  

 Senior Helpline Services (SHS) – Rides for Seniors  

 City of Fremont – Tri-City Volunteer Driver Programs 

Both the Mobility Matters and the Rides for Seniors programs have 

performed approximately 60-70% below their original Cycle 5 

performance targets. For 2015-16, CIL has requested a slight increase in 

funding over the initial Cycle 5 program, but the planned targets for FY 

2015-16 are approximately 57% below the original Cycle 5 annual 

targets. The SHS has requested the same level of funding for FY 2015-16, 

but the planned trip target for FY 2015-16 is approximately 48% lower. 

Page 10



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\4_Gap_Grant_Extension_Memo_20150427.docx 

 

Both CIL and SHS have other potential sources of funding. The City of 

Alameda has proposed providing funds to SHS through their FY 2015-16 

Measure B Direct Local Distribution funding, and CIL has been selected 

for an FTA 5310 grant which may be available in early 2016. 

Fremont’s Tri-City Volunteer Driver Programs requested a 75% increase 

over the original Cycle 5 annual award.  However performance has 

been slightly below target, and the planned trips for FY 15/16 are 

slightly below original Cycle 5 annual targets. Although staff is 

recommending partial funding, the recommended amount is still a 

$40,000 increase over the annual amount the project received through 

the original Cycle 5 program. 

Next Steps 

A PAPCO-recommended program of projects for the Cycle 5 FY 2015-

16 extension is scheduled to be considered by the Commission in May 

2015.  

Attachments 

A. Cycle 5 Gap Grant FY 2015-16 Extension Requests and Funding 

Recommendations 

B. Summary of Cycle 5 Gap Grant FY 2015-16 Performance Measures   

Staff Contacts  

Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

 

Page 11

mailto:narmenta@alamedactc.org
mailto:jtaylor@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 12



A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

: C
yc

le
 5

 G
ap

 G
ra

nt
 F

Y 
20

15
-1

6 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

Re
qu

es
ts

 a
nd

 F
un

di
ng

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

To
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

 
C

os
t

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

G
ap

 F
un

d
in

g 
Re

qu
es

t 

%
 C

ha
ng

e 
fro

m
 F

Y 
20

14
-

15
 F

un
d

in
g

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

M
at

ch
in

g 
Fu

nd
s

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Re
co

m
-

m
en

da
tio

n

Pa
rti

al
/F

ul
l 

Fu
nd

in
g

A
SE

B
Sp

ec
ia

l T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ith

 D
em

en
tia

A
SE

B 
(A

lzh
ei

m
er

's 
Se

rv
ic

es
 o

f t
he

 E
as

t B
ay

) p
ro

po
se

s t
o 

tra
ns

po
rt 

in
d

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ith

 c
og

ni
tiv

e 
im

pa
irm

en
t a

nd
 

m
em

or
y 

lo
ss

 to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 th

ei
r h

om
es

 a
nd

 a
 sa

fe
 A

d
ul

t D
ay

 
He

al
th

 C
ar

e 
ce

nt
er

. O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
us

es
 a

nd
 sp

ec
ia

lly
 tr

ai
ne

d
 d

riv
er

s. 
Se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
M

on
d

ay
 th

ro
ug

h 
Fr

id
ay

 fr
om

 8
A

M
 to

 6
PM

.

$4
20

,6
48

$1
00

,0
00

0%
76

%
$1

00
,0

00
Fu

ll

BO
RP

A
cc

es
sib

le
 G

ro
up

 T
rip

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

fo
r 

Yo
ut

h 
an

d
 A

d
ul

ts
 w

ith
 

D
isa

bi
lit

ie
s

Th
is 

pr
oj

ec
t p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 g

ro
up

 tr
ip

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
in

 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

th
 a

nd
 a

d
ul

ts
 w

ith
 

d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 re
cr

ea
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s. 

$1
85

,0
00

$1
48

,0
00

9%
20

%
$1

48
,0

00
Fu

ll

C
IL

M
ob

ilit
y 

M
at

te
rs

 
Pr

oj
ec

t

M
ob

ilit
y 

M
at

te
rs

 is
 a

 c
on

so
rti

um
 o

f s
en

io
r a

nd
 d

isa
bi

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
tra

ve
l t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d

 m
ob

ilit
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s s

o 
th

at
 se

ni
or

s a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
d

isa
bi

lit
ie

s c
an

 b
ec

om
e 

m
or

e 
en

ga
ge

d
 in

 th
ei

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 fi
xe

d
 ro

ut
e 

tra
ns

it.

$3
30

,6
08

$1
83

,7
45

5%
44

%
$1

40
,0

00
Pa

rti
al

C
ity

 o
f 

Em
er

yv
ille

8-
To

-G
o:

 A
 D

em
an

d
 

Re
sp

on
se

, D
oo

r t
o 

D
oo

r S
hu

ttl
e

A
 D

em
an

d
 R

es
po

ns
e 

Sh
ut

tle
 S

er
vi

ce
 fo

r s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s l

iv
in

g 
in

 th
e 

94
60

8 
ar

ea
 o

f 
O

ak
la

nd
/E

m
er

yv
ille

 w
ith

 se
rv

ic
e 

to
 B

er
ke

le
y 

an
d

 n
ea

rb
y 

im
po

rta
nt

 d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 b
ey

on
d

 9
46

08
 a

re
a.

$9
3,

10
0

$3
4,

00
0

-3
6%

63
%

$3
4,

00
0

Fu
ll

C
ity

 o
f 

Fr
em

on
t

Tr
i-C

ity
 M

ob
ilit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m

Th
is 

pr
og

ra
m

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 in

d
iv

id
ua

liz
ed

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

ss
ist

an
ce

 a
nd

 in
te

ns
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
to

 
he

lp
 se

ni
or

s a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s n

av
ig

at
e 

an
d

 
ac

ce
ss

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 n
et

w
or

k 
to

 fi
nd

 th
e 

m
os

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

od
e 

of
 tr

av
el

 fo
r t

he
ir 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ne
ed

s. 
 G

ro
up

 a
nd

 in
d

iv
id

ua
l t

ra
ve

l t
ra

in
in

g 
w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
co

ns
um

er
s l

ea
rn

 h
ow

 to
 u

se
 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sit

.

$1
25

,0
00

$1
25

,0
00

25
%

0%
$1

25
,0

00
Fu

ll

C
ity

 o
f 

Fr
em

on
t

Tr
i-C

ity
 V

ol
un

te
er

 
D

riv
er

 P
ro

gr
am

s

Bo
th

 th
e 

V
IP

 R
id

es
 a

nd
 D

riv
er

s f
or

 S
ur

vi
vo

rs
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

d
oo

r-
th

ro
ug

h-
d

oo
r a

ss
ist

ed
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d

 to
 

ad
d

re
ss

 a
 se

rv
ic

e 
ga

p 
th

at
 c

an
no

t b
e 

fil
le

d
 b

y 
A

D
A

 o
r c

ity
-

ba
se

d
 p

ar
at

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

es
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 e
ith

er
 c

ur
b-

to
-c

ur
b 

or
 d

oo
r-t

o-
d

oo
r s

er
vi

ce
s. 

V
IP

 R
id

es
 se

rv
es

 o
ld

er
 a

d
ul

ts
 a

nd
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

isa
bi

lit
ie

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
us

in
g 

w
he

el
ch

ai
rs

 
an

d
 o

th
er

 m
ob

ilit
y 

d
ev

ic
es

.  
D

riv
er

s f
or

 S
ur

vi
vo

rs
 se

rv
es

 
am

bu
la

to
ry

 a
d

ul
ts

 w
ho

 a
re

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 c

an
ce

r.

$2
77

,3
24

$1
75

,0
00

75
%

37
%

$1
40

,0
00

Pa
rti

al

4A

Page 13



A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

: C
yc

le
 5

 G
ap

 G
ra

nt
 F

Y 
20

15
-1

6 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

Re
qu

es
ts

 a
nd

 F
un

di
ng

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

To
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

 
C

os
t

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

G
ap

 F
un

d
in

g 
Re

qu
es

t 

%
 C

ha
ng

e 
fro

m
 F

Y 
20

14
-

15
 F

un
d

in
g

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

M
at

ch
in

g 
Fu

nd
s

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Re
co

m
-

m
en

da
tio

n

Pa
rti

al
/F

ul
l 

Fu
nd

in
g

C
ity

 o
f 

Fr
em

on
t

Tr
i-C

ity
 T

ax
i V

ou
ch

er
 

Pr
og

ra
m

Th
is 

pr
og

ra
m

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

, s
am

e-
d

ay
 ta

xi 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s 

re
sid

in
g 

in
 F

re
m

on
t, 

N
ew

ar
k 

or
 U

ni
on

 C
ity

.
$1

81
,2

00
$1

75
,0

00
75

%
3%

$1
75

,0
00

Fu
ll

C
ity

 o
f 

O
ak

la
nd

Ta
xi-

Up
 &

 G
o 

Pr
oj

ec
t

Th
e 

TU
&

G
O

 P
ro

je
ct

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 e

ld
er

ly
 p

ar
at

ra
ns

it 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

es
co

rt 
an

d
 c

as
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
su

bs
id

ize
d

 ta
xi-

sc
rip

 se
rv

ic
es

. I
t p

ro
vi

d
es

 p
ee

r r
el

at
ed

 
tra

ns
po

rt 
an

d
 c

ul
tu

ra
lly

 se
ns

iti
ve

 su
pp

or
tiv

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

fo
r i

so
la

te
d

 a
nd

 m
on

o-
lin

gu
al

 se
ni

or
s a

ss
ist

ed
 b

y 
tra

in
ed

 
Se

ni
or

 C
om

pa
ni

on
 v

ol
un

te
er

 e
sc

or
ts

, C
ar

eg
iv

er
s a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

$9
2,

50
0

$9
2,

50
0

0%
0%

$9
2,

50
0

Fu
ll

C
ity

 o
f 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Ro
ut

e 
Sh

ut
tle

 (D
TR

)

Th
e 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ro

ut
e 

(D
TR

) s
hu

ttl
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
, 

sa
m

e-
d

ay
 ri

d
es

 to
 se

ni
or

s a
nd

 A
D

A
 e

lig
ib

le
 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
/S

un
ol

 re
sid

en
ts

. S
ta

ff 
an

d
 v

ol
un

te
er

s a
lso

 
pr

ov
id

e 
tra

ve
l t

ra
in

in
g;

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
gr

ou
p 

tri
ps

, a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

e 
ou

tre
ac

h 
an

d
 tr

an
sit

 e
d

uc
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
s p

ar
t 

of
 th

is 
gr

an
t.

$5
1,

80
5

$4
1,

89
4

-2
%

19
%

$4
1,

89
4

Fu
ll

Se
ni

or
 

He
lp

lin
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

Ri
d

es
 fo

r S
en

io
rs

SH
S 

Ri
d

es
 fo

r S
en

io
rs

 is
 a

 fr
ee

, e
sc

or
te

d
, d

oo
r-t

hr
ou

gh
-d

oo
r, 

1:
1 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r d
riv

er
 p

ro
gr

am
, t

ha
t p

ro
vi

d
es

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 v

ia
 v

ol
un

te
er

 o
w

ne
d

 a
nd

 in
su

re
d

 c
ar

s t
o 

ot
he

rw
ise

 
ho

m
eb

ou
nd

, a
m

bu
la

to
ry

 se
ni

or
s a

ge
 6

0+
 w

ho
 c

an
no

t 
ac

ce
ss

 o
th

er
 fo

rm
s o

f t
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
fo

r m
ed

ic
al

 c
ar

e,
 

d
en

ta
l c

ar
e,

 a
nd

 b
as

ic
 n

ec
es

sit
ie

s. 

$8
0,

00
0

$7
5,

00
0

0%
6%

$6
0,

00
0

Pa
rti

al

SS
PT

V
V

ol
un

te
er

 A
ss

ist
ed

 
Se

ni
or

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m

V
ol

un
te

er
s A

ss
ist

in
g 

Se
ni

or
s w

ith
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

(V
A

ST
) 

su
pp

le
m

en
ts

 e
xis

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

ar
at

ra
ns

it 
pr

og
ra

m
s b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fre
e,

 d
oo

r-t
hr

ou
gh

-d
oo

r s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r s

en
io

rs
 to

 
th

ei
r m

ed
ic

al
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

.  
V

ol
un

te
er

 d
riv

er
s a

nd
 st

af
f 

tra
ns

po
rt 

at
-ri

sk
 se

ni
or

s, 
en

ab
lin

g 
th

em
 to

 tr
av

el
 sa

fe
ly

 in
 

an
d

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
to

 c
rit

ic
al

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
ar

e.

$8
2,

50
0

$7
5,

00
0

0%
9%

$7
5,

00
0

Fu
ll

TO
TA

L
$1

,9
19

,6
85

$1
,2

25
,1

39
$1

,1
31

,3
94

Page 14



Attachment B: Cycle 5 Gap Grant FY 2015-16 Performance Measures 

Sponsor Project Name  Total Program 
Cost 15/16

Extension 
Funding 

Request 15/16

% over/under 
Cycle 5 
funding

Original Cycle 5 
Highlighted 

Performance Measures

Target First 
18 months

Performance 
First 18 months

% over/ 
under Target

Exceed, 
At, or 
Below 
Target

Calculated 
Unit Cost from 
Original Cycle 

5 Total 
Program

FY15/16 Extension
Highlighted

 Performance Measures
Target

% Change 
from Cycle 5 

Measure

Higher, 
Lower, or 

Same 
Target

Planned 
15/16 Unit 

Cost

Staff-
calculated 
Unit Cost

Recom-
mended
Funding

Partial or 
Full 

Funding

ASEB

Special 
Transportation 
Services for 
Individuals with 
Dementia

$420,648 $100,000 0% One-way trips provided 37500 37315 0% Below $17 One-way trips provided 30000 20% Higher $14 $14 $100,000 Full

Children and youth with disabilities served 125 117 -6% Below Children and youth with disabilities served 90 8% Higher

Adults with disabilities served 400 263 -34% Below Adults with disabilities served 300 13% Higher

One-way group trips provided to children, youth, 
and adults 4200 4551 8% Exceed $56 One-way group trips provided to children, 

youth, and adults 3400 21% Higher $54 $54

Ala. County seniors to receive travel training 252 77 -69% Below $2,171 Ala. County seniors to receive travel training 125 -26% Lower $658 $736

Ala. County adults with disabilities to receive 
travel training (Note: this target is in addition to 
the 240 seniors to receive travel training)

369 123 -67% Below
Ala. County adults with disabilities to receive 
one-on-one travel training (Note: this target is in 
addition to the seniors to receive travel training)

100 -59% Lower $658

Ala. County youths with disabilities to receive 
travel training 25.5 45 76% Exceed Ala. County youths with disabilities to receive 

travel training 50 194% Higher $658

Ala. County adults with vision impairments to 
receive one-on-one travel training 17 NA New $658

Ala. County adults with disabilities to receive 
training on how to use mobility device (e.g., 
cane, scooter, walker, wheelchair)

52.5 37 -30% Below Ala. County adults with disabilities to receive 
training on how to use mobility device 17 -51% Lower $658

City of 
Emeryville

8-To-Go: A Demand 
Response, Door to 
Door Shuttle

$93,100 $34,000 -36% One-way trips provided 7300 4252 -42% Below $33 One-way trips provided 3000 -38% Lower $31 $31 $34,000 Full

Number of individualized transportation planning 
assistance contacts 450 491 9% Exceed $57 Number of individualized transportation 

planning assistance contacts 300 0% Same $57

Number of coordinated free one-way trips for 
applicants to get to and from appointments 262.5 826 215% Exceed Number of coordinated free one-way trips for 

applicants to get to and from appointments 350 100% Higher

Number of Travel training workshops 22.5 23 2% Exceed NA Removed

Number of individuals attended Travel training 
workshops 337.5 284 -16% Below Number of individuals attended Travel training 

workshops 200 -11% Lower

Number of individualized travel training instruction 
sessions provided. 37.5 29 -23% Below Number of individualized travel training 

instruction sessions provided. 20 -20% Lower

Number of Transit Adventure outings to teach 
participants how to travel on transit throughout 
the Bay Area

15 22 47% Exceed
Number of Transit Adventure outings to teach 
participants how to travel on transit throughout 
the Bay Area

15 50% Higher

Number of Senior Clipper Cards Distributed 900 1827 103% Exceed Number of Senior Clipper Cards Distributed 1000 67% Higher
Number of informational sessions conducted with 
service providers 30 37 23% Exceed Number of informational sessions conducted 

with service providers 20 0% Same

Number of transportation service presentations 9 16 78% Exceed Number of transportation service presentations 12 100% Higher

Number of Clipper Card presentations 9 20 122% Exceed Number of Clipper Card presentations 8 33% Higher

Number of new clients enrolled VIP 112.5 224 99% Exceed Number of new clients enrolled VIP 120 60% Higher

Number of new clients enrolled DFS 112.5 152 35% Exceed Number of new clients enrolled DFS 80 7% Higher

Number of volunteers recruited VIP 75 40 -47% Below Number of volunteers recruited VIP 25 -50% Lower

Number of volunteers recruited DFS 75 96 28% Exceed Number of volunteers recruited DFS 60 20% Higher
Number of door-through-door assisted one-way 
trips VIP 8700 7734 -11% Below $20 Number of door-through-door assisted one-way 

trips VIP 5400 -7% Lower $20 $31

Number of door-through-door assisted one-way 
trips DFS 5250 3213 -39% Below Number of door-through-door assisted one-way 

trips DFS 3600 3% Higher $47

One-way same day trips 4125 4000 -3% Below $43 One-way same day trips 7800 184% Higher $19 $23

One-way accessible trips 37.5 0 -100% Below NA Removed

Accessible Group 
Trip Transportation for 
Youth and Adults with 
Disabilities

Tri-City Taxi Voucher 
Program

Tri-City Volunteer 
Driver Programs

Tri-City Mobility 
Management and 

Travel Training 
Program

Mobility Matters 
Project

BORP

CIL

City of 
Fremont

City of 
Fremont

City of 
Fremont

Full

$140,000 Partial

$125,000 Full

$181,200 $175,000

$277,324 $175,000

$148,000$185,000 $148,000

$330,608 $183,745

$125,000 $125,000

9%

5%

25%

75%

75% Full$175,000

Partial$140,000

Gap_Ext_Targets_and_Performance_Final.xlsx; Attachment B Page 1 of 2

4B

Page 15



Attachment B: Cycle 5 Gap Grant FY 2015-16 Performance Measures 

Sponsor Project Name  Total Program 
Cost 15/16

Extension 
Funding 

Request 15/16

% over/under 
Cycle 5 
funding

Original Cycle 5 
Highlighted 

Performance Measures

Target First 
18 months

Performance 
First 18 months

% over/ 
under Target

Exceed, 
At, or 
Below 
Target

Calculated 
Unit Cost from 
Original Cycle 

5 Total 
Program

FY15/16 Extension
Highlighted

 Performance Measures
Target

% Change 
from Cycle 5 

Measure

Higher, 
Lower, or 

Same 
Target

Planned 
15/16 Unit 

Cost

Staff-
calculated 
Unit Cost

Recom-
mended
Funding

Partial or 
Full 

Funding

Number of one-way taxi-escorted trips  5400 2610 -52% Below $71 Number of one-way taxi-escorted trips  1500 -58% Lower $33 $62

Number  of Volunteers/Caregivers trained  150 168 12% Exceed NA Removed

Number of clients transported  750 748 0% Below NA Removed

Number of case managed clients  150 154 3% Exceed NA Removed

Provide DTR rides 4500 3271 -27% Below $23 Provide DTR rides 2800 -7% Lower $20 $18

Serve unduplicated riders 150 104 -31% Below Serve unduplicated riders 100 0% Same

Complete lift assist rides 750 1407 88% Exceed Complete lift assist rides 500 0% Same

Complete volunteer travel training 37.5 92 145% Exceed Complete volunteer travel training 15 -40% Lower

Complete outreach/ education meetings 30 106 253% Exceed Complete outreach/ education meetings 24 20% Higher

Complete group recreational trips to seniors and 
adults with disabilities 15 NA New

Recruited, screened and trained volunteers 60 50 -17% Below Recruited, screened and trained new volunteers 50 25% Higher

Enrolled clients in Rides for Seniors Program 112.5 81 -28% Below Enrolled new clients in Rides for Seniors Program 80 7% Higher

Average rides to clients (total 18 mo.) 3750 1092 -71% Below $159 Rides to clients 1950 -22% Lower $41 $41

Number of volunteer drivers for same day 
transportation and other crucial appointments. 30 51 70% Exceed Number of total volunteer drivers 30 50% Same

Number of one-way Volunteer Assisted Same 
Day Transportation and Escorts trips scheduled. 3750 3726 -1% Below $33 Number of one-way Volunteer Assisted Same 

Day Transportation and Escorts trips scheduled. 2500 0% Same $30 $33

Number of outreach events conducted. 30 44 47% Exceed Number of outreach events conducted. 30 50% Higher

Number of unduplicated riders. 150 177 18% Exceed Number of clients enrolled 150 50% Higher

Number of volunteer drivers trained. 15 14 -7% Below Number of volunteer drivers trained. 7 -30% Lower
$1,919,685 $1,225,139 $1,131,394

0%

-2%

0%

0%

Taxi-Up & Go Project

$82,500 $75,000
Volunteer Assisted 

Senior Transportation 
Program

SSPTV

$92,500 $92,500

Senior 
Helpline 
Services

Rides for Seniors $80,000 $75,000

$51,805 $41,894Downtown Route 
Shuttle (DTR)

City of 
Pleasanton

City of 
Oakland Full$92,500

Full$41,894

Partial$60,000

Full$75,000

Gap_Ext_Targets_and_Performance_Final.xlsx; Attachment B Page 2 of 2 Page 16



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\8.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20150427.docx  

 

PAPCO Calendar of Events for  
April through May 2015  8.1 

 

Full Committee Meetings 

• Regular PAPCO monthly meeting: 

Monday, March 23, 2015, 1 to 3:30 p.m., Alameda CTC 

• Regular PAPCO/Joint monthly meeting:  

Monday, April 27, 2015, 1 to 4 p.m., Alameda CTC 

• Regular PAPCO monthly meeting: 

Monday, May 18, 2015, 1 to 3:30 p.m., Alameda CTC 

Subcommittee Meetings 

• Finance Subcommittee meeting:  

Thursday, April 16, 2015, 10 a.m. to 12 p.m., Alameda CTC 

• Program Plan Review Subcommittee meetings:  

Wednesday, April 29, 2015, 9:30 a.m. to 3:40 p.m., Alameda CTC 

Thursday, April 30, 2015, 9:30 a.m. to 3:45 p.m., Alameda CTC 

 

Outreach 

Date Event Name Location Time 

4/1/15 BART Train and 

Track Tour 

19th Street BART Station, Upper 

Platform, Oakland, CA  94612 

10:00 a.m. – 

12:00 p.m. 

4/23/15 Senior Health 

Fair 

North Berkeley Senior Center, 1901 

Hearst Avenue, Berkeley, CA  

94709 

10:00 a.m. – 

2:00 p.m. 

5/6/15 Oakland Older 

Americans 

Month Event 

Frank Ogawa Plaza, 1 Frank H. 

Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA  

94612 

11:00 a.m. – 

2:00 p.m. 

5/7/15 Senior Health 

and Wellness 

Resource Fair 

Kenneth Aitken Senior and 

Community Center, 17800 

Redwood Road, Castro Valley, 

9:00 a.m. – 

1:00 p.m. 

Page 17



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\8.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20150427.docx  
 

Date Event Name Location Time 

CA  94546 

5/28/15 California 

Senior Injury 

Prevention 

Education 

Forum 

Hilton Garden Inn, 1800 Powell 

Street, Emeryville, CA  94608 

8:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m. 

PAPCO members will be notified of other events as they are scheduled. 

For more information about outreach events or to sign up to attend, 

please call Krystle Pasco at (510) 208-7467. 

Page 18



 
 

 P
A

P
C

O
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
 

Th
e

 P
A

P
C

O
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
e

s 
a

ss
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
0

 M
e

a
su

re
 B

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 P

la
n

 (
TE

P
),

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 P
A

P
C

O
 B

y
la

w
s.

  
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 s

ta
ff

 u
p

d
a

te
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 m

o
n

th
ly

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
A

P
C

O
 C

h
a

ir
 o

r 
V

ic
e

 C
h

a
ir
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
to

 t
h

e
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 m
o

n
th

ly
 o

n
 P

A
P

C
O

 a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s.
 

 

To
p

ic
: 
P
A

P
C

O
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 P
A

P
C

O
’s

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
s 

a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
d

v
is

o
ry

 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
; 
a

c
c

o
m

p
lis

h
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 i
n

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
w

a
y

s 
in

 a
ll
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

A
ll 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 a

c
ti
v

it
y
 (

w
ri
te

 a
n

 

a
rt

ic
le

, 
sp

e
a

k
 a

t 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
, 
v

is
it
 a

 s
e

n
io

r 
c

e
n

te
r,

 o
r 

a
tt

e
n

d
 a

n
 

e
v

e
n

t)
 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 p

u
b

lic
iz

in
g

 t
h

e
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
’s

 s
p

e
c

ia
l 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 b
o

o
k
le

t 
a

n
d

 

A
c

c
e

ss
A

la
m

e
d

a
.o

rg
 w

e
b

si
te

 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 T

E
P

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
  

x
 

 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
P

A
P

C
O

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
a

c
a

n
c

ie
s 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 A
n

n
u

a
l W

o
rk

sh
o

p
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4
 

x
 

 

A
sk

 s
ta

ff
 f

o
r 

a
ss

is
ta

n
c

e
 i
n

 d
ra

ft
in

g
 t

a
lk

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 o
r 

a
rt

ic
le

s,
 o

r 
o

b
ta

in
in

g
 

o
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

 
x
 

 
 

 
 

8.2

Page 19



 

To
p

ic
: 

M
o

b
il
it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

G
o

a
l:
 L

e
a

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 M
o

b
il
it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
ff
o

rt
s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 in

p
u

t 
o

n
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 M

o
b

ili
ty

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
 

x
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 M
o

b
ili

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 in

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

p
a

c
k
e

t 

 
x
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 P
o

li
c

y
 O

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 p
o

li
c

y
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
v

e
r 

p
a

ss
-t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 G
a

p
 G

ra
n

t 
C

y
c

le
 5

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

e
p

o
rt

s 
st

a
tu

s 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

M
a

rc
h

 

 x
 

x
 

  

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
 G

a
p

 C
y
c

le
 5

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

ts
 

 
x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 a
m

e
n

d
in

g
 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s 

x
 

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

rm
u

la
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l T
E
P

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
x
 

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 G
a

p
 G

ra
n

t 
C

y
c

le
 6

 C
a

ll 
(e

d
it
e

d
 –

 G
a

p
 5

 e
xt

e
n

si
o

n
) 

 
x
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

D
TS

 a
n

d
 W

S
B

TS
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 20



 

To
p

ic
: 

F
id

u
c

ia
ry

 O
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 f
id

u
c

ia
ry

 o
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 
o

v
e

r 
p

a
ss

-t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
fo

r 
G

a
p

 G
ra

n
t 

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 

 
x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 5
3
1
0

 C
a

ll 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

  
x
 

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
 f

id
u

c
ia

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c

e
 s

u
b

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

x
 

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
v

a
lu

a
te

 p
a

ss
-t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s 

 
x
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

a
n

d
 p

o
li
c

y
 d

is
c

u
ss

io
n

s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 jo
in

t 
d

is
c

u
ss

io
n

 w
it
h

 P
a

ra
TA

C
 a

t 
Jo

in
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s 

 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

A
p

ri
l 

 x
 

x
  

    

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

su
m

m
a

ri
e

s 
o

f 
A

D
A

-m
a

n
d

a
te

d
 p

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
a

d
v

is
o

ry
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s’

 m
in

u
te

s 
a

n
d

 T
ra

n
si

t 
A

c
c

e
ss

 R
e

p
o

rt
s 

 
x
 

Page 21



To
p

ic
: 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s 

(e
.g

. 
S
R

A
C

, 
W

A
A

C
, 
A

A
C

, 
C

it
y
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 e

tc
.)

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

 C
h

a
ir
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s 

re
q

u
e

st
e

d
 

 
x
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

o
n

 M
TC

 a
n

d
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l i

ss
u

e
s/

e
v

e
n

ts
 

 
x
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 o
th

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
  

 
x
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
 

G
o

a
l:
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 d
ri
v

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
e

 a
s 

a
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
; 

a
n

d
 f

a
c

il
it
a

te
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

so
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c

o
n

su
m

e
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 D

ri
v

e
r 

Tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 it

e
m

s 

fo
r 

A
D

A
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
C

it
y
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
ta

xi
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
e

tc
. 

 
x
 

 
 

 
   

Page 22



 
 

 

PAPCO Appointments and  

Vacancies 
 

8.3 

 

Appointer Member 

 Alameda County  

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1  Herb Hastings 

Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2  Tom Perez 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3  Sylvia Stadmire 

Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4  Sandra Johnson Simon 

Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5  Will Scott 

 City of Alameda   Harriette Saunders 

 City of Albany  Jonah Markowitz 

 City of Berkeley  Vacant 

 City of Dublin  Shawn Costello 

 City of Emeryville  Joyce Jacobson 

 City of Fremont  Sharon Powers 

 City of Hayward  Vanessa Proee 

 City of Livermore  Vacant 

 City of Newark  Vacant 

 City of Oakland  Rev. Carolyn M. Orr 

 City of Piedmont  Vacant 

 City of Pleasanton  Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson 

 City of San Leandro  Vacant 

 City of Union City  Suzanne Ortt 

 AC Transit   Hale Zukas 

 BART  Michelle Rousey 

 LAVTA  Esther Waltz 

 Union City Transit  Larry Bunn 

 

Page 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 24



10.1

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



http://sfist.com/2015/04/16/private_bus_service_leap_removed_wh.php 

 

 

Leap Purposely Made Their Private Buses Inaccessible 

For Wheelchairs 

 

  
Screenshot of a promotional video via Leap 

 

It turns out that a private bus startup catering to Financial District 

workers might not care about everyone. As the Chronicle reports, a 

complaint filed last month with the Department of Justice alleges that 

Leap, which launched in earnest last month and is not wheelchair 

accessible, violates the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 

Worse, it sounds like Leap actually replaced wheelchair accessibility on 

previously wheelchair-equipped buses in favor of bar seating and 

leather armchairs. 

 

Leap purchased its four 2001 and 2002 North American Bus Industries 

11.1

Page 31

http://sfist.com/2015/04/16/private_bus_service_leap_removed_wh.php
http://rideleap.com/
http://www.sfchronicle.com/news/article/Bus-startup-Leap-s-luxury-doesn-t-extend-to-6203093.php?t=e0847daffebaa6eec6&cmpid=twitter-premium
http://rideleap.com/
http://sfist.com/2015/03/18/private_bus_service_leap_is_here_to.php


vehicles through an auction house from the Riverside Transit Agency, 

and a representative from that agency said any buses it used would 

have included wheelchair-accessibility. Further, the buses' manufacturer 

confirmed that the purchased and resold models originally came 

equipped with a wheelchair ramp and interior wheelchair space. 

 

“This is a step backwards,” Said 26-year-old Chris Pangilinan, the former 

transportation engineer for the San Francisco Municipal Transportation 

Agency who filed the complaint and has used a wheelchair for most of 

his life. “If they had put up a sign that said 'no whites’ or something 

like that there would be national outrage," he said, calling it "the same 

kind of violation." 

 

Andreessen Horowitz, Index Ventures, Slow Ventures, and Salesforce 

CEO Marc Benioff have together invested $2.5 million in Leap, whose 

$6-per-ride service provides Wi-Fi, USB ports, and sells cold-pressed 

juice and Blue Bottle Coffee. 

 

  
Screenshot from a promotional Leap videovia Leap 

Page 32

http://rideleap.com/


 

The ADA does not include specific requirements for used vehicles, but 

neither does it explicitly exempt used vehicles from requirements for 

accessibility. It also has different requirements for companies like hotels 

that run shuttles but aren't primarily transportation companies. 

 

In a statement to The Chronicle, Leap said that its “understanding is 

that used vehicles do not have the same accessibility requirements as 

new vehicles.” It declined to comment on whether or not it removed 

wheelchair accessibility. And finally, it maintains it “does not provide 

transportation services,” and that it is “not a transportation carrier.” 

Wha?! Is it a juice company? 

 

Ironically, in pitching his business to TechCrunch, co-founder Kyle 

Kirchhoff said, "there’s a sort of invisible boundary if part of a city is not 

accessible to transit.” 

 

Well, perhaps now we know what he meant. 

 

Caleb Pershan in News on Apr 16, 2015 11:15 am 

Page 33

http://sfist.com/author/Caleb%20Pershan
http://sfist.com/news


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 34


	PAPCO_Meeting_Notice_20150427
	PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150427
	PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_Packet_pages_20150427
	3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323
	4_Gap_Grant_Extension_Memo_20150427_full
	4_Gap_Grant_Extension_Memo_20150427
	4A_Cycle_5_Gap_Grant_FY2015-16_Recommentation_20150427_final
	4B_Cycle_5_Gap_Grant_FY2015-16_Performance_Measures_20150427

	8.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20150427
	8.2_FY14-15_PAPCO_Work_Plan_20150427
	8.3_PAPCO_Appointments_20150427
	10.1_EBP_SRAC_Meeting_Minutes_20150106
	11.1_SFist_News_Article_Leap_Inaccessibility_20150427




